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Chairman Weisz opened the hearing on H B  1 3 1 4. We wi l l  take a short break until Rep.  
Delmore arrives . 

.46 
Vice-Chair Hofstad: We wi l l  reopen the hearing on H B  1 3 1 4 .  

Rep .  Lois Delmore: From district 4 3  introduced and supported the b i l l .  (See Testimony # 1 )  

3 :36 
Rep.  Mooney: Today a minor cannot refuse a testing? 

Rep.  Delmore: Without parental consent they cannot choose whether to do the exam or 
not. 

Rep.  Fehr: I don't see in the b i l l  where they minor can decl ine that. Can you point it out to 
me? 

Rep .  Delmore: That would be related to the forensics exam itself. Maybe someone else 
can give you more deta i l  on that. 

5 : 1 1  
Janel le Moos: Executive Director of the CAWS N D  testified in support of the b i l l .  (See 
Testimony #2 . 

8:25 
Rep .  Porter: I don't see anywhere in the new language where the refusal portion exists . 

can see where the minor can get the exam, but I don't see where there is a refusal portion . 

There seems to be a confl ict set up between physicians and health care providers with their 
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d uty to report provisions in the statute when a crime has been committed. There are 
responsibi l ities i n  law that are p laced on health care providers that say if a crime has been 
committed you have to notify law enforcement. I don't see how this new language can 
work. 

1 0: 07 
Moos: We need to further clarify that it is in both scenarios . There is that section on the 
duty report for physicians in  cases of sexual assau lt .  I don't see where this is l imit ing that 
and we don't want to l imit that. This is al lowing victims to consent or not consent to forensic 
exam. Right now victims can choose to talk to or not talk  to law enforcement. 

Rep .  Porter: There is nothing in  here about the refusal portion .  

Moos: We'd be happy to work with you on amendments .  

Rep. Kiefert: What is the protocol now for a minor in an auto accident? The ambulance 
shows up and they have to get permission before they can help them? 

Moos: I 'm only looking at the subsection related to sexual assau lt. I th ink this changed a 
couple of sessions ago in terms of the abi l ity of a m inor consent to emergency treatment, 
but I 'm not an expert on that subsection .  

Rep. Fehr: Are there other states taken the d irection you want to take now? 

Moos: I can provide that information to the committee. 

NO OPPOSITION 

Vice-Chair Hofstad closed the hearing on HB 1 3 14 .  
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C ha irman Weisz: Let's look at H B  1 3 14 .  

Rep .  Fehr: I don't know if I am ready to offer this as  an amendment, but let me  float it 
passed and see what you think.  I d id reworking of that to change a couple of th ings. 
I nstead it wou ld read , "A physician or other healthcare provider may provide emergency 
med ica l  care for forensics services to a minor who is a victim of sexual assault without the 
consent of m inor's parents or guardian ."  

Chairman Weisz: You are el iminating the related fol low-up language. 

Rep. Damschen: I 'm wondering if the healthcare providers should be requ ired to report. 
Are they required to report to the law enforcement now? 

Chairman Weisz: I believe al l  sexual assault has to be reported . 

Rep. Damschen: I 'm not sure al l  of shouldn't be preceded with notification of the parents . 

Chairman Weisz: The current law that has to do with emergency care, if you look above 
there it says that reasonable steps have to be made to contact the minor's parents or 
guardian .  It also says , "it does not authorize a minor to withhold consent to emergency 
examination ,  care or treatment" .  

Rep. Oversen :  I th ink  with the language on l ine 14  that says, "upon the request of a m inor", 
that is putting the ( inaud ible) to receive the care. So if they don't want the care they won't 
end up in the hospital .  

Rep. Porter: U nder the same premise if the parent wants to have the forensic exam done, 
then you have taken away the parental rights to do that. 

C ha irman Weisz: That was my question ,  if they could request. The minor could request 
the emergency med ical  care under this provis ion, then wou ld that al low them to prohibit the 
forensic part? 
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Rep. Porter: There is a question in whether or not they can refuse the law enforcement 
also. If the physician is aware of a crime and follows the mandatory notification process 
and law enforcement comes, if seems they can refuse law enforcement unt i l  a search 
warrant is obta ined . And that puts another step inside of the law enforcement category. 
Then the parents would have to go to a Judge with law enforcement and get a search 
warrant in order to gather the evidence of the sexual assault. I 'm not clear on what we are 
trying to fix. 

Rep. Oversen: If a mandated reporter is reporting under a 950 it is not to law enforcement 
it is to child protective services. Law enforcement may or may not get involved . They will 
decide if follow up with law enforcement is necessary. 

Chairman Weisz: I th ink you are right that the mandatory reporting is to chi ld protection 
services. 

Rep . Rich Becker: I sn't the jest of this bi l l  to take the parent out of the equation? If this is 
an accurate interpretation of the b i l l, I cou ldn 't support it. 

Chairman Weisz: I assume the intent of the sponsor is that some minors wi l l  not go in for 
any care if they th ink their parents wil l know and then they wil l  neglect doing anything .  

Rep. Mooney: This is  an attempt to protect some of these chi ldren .  There are many 
fami l ies are not normal and are dysfunctional . I support th is b i l l .  

Rep. Weisz: It would be simpler to add sexual assau lt on top and then al l  the safeguards 
are in p lace. They can't withhold consent and the parent has to be tried to be notified . I 
th ink the current law is working. I haven't heard otherwise. 

Rep. Damschen: I do think the hurd le is getting the chi ld to treatment. I th ink what you are 
suggesting might take care of that. 

Rep . Porter: The department inside of the existing law in 5025. 1 which is the portion to do 
with chi ld abuse and neglect says, "if the report a l leges a violation of a criminal  statute 
involving or physical abuse, the department and appropriate law enforcement agencies 
shal l  coord inate the plann ing and executive of their investigation" .  The department and 
chi ld protective services cannot withhold information if it is a crim inal case. There is a 
reporting requirement that everybody is required to report or it is a class B misdemeanor. I 
th ink the department needs to come down. 

Chairman Weisz: This deals strictly with sexual assau lt .  Not necessarily with chi ld abuse 
from the standpoint of a fami ly member that is abusing. We can put this aside and I ' l l  get 
someone down to clarify some things for the committee. 
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Chairman Weisz: Rep.  Mooney, wi l l  you explain the amendments? 

Rep. Mooney: On l i ne 1 5 , the "shal l" is changed to "may" so that it puts the role of the 
physician in more of a permissary role. In l ine 1 6 , remove the language, "and any related 
fol low-up  care to the minor." (Refers to Att. #1 ) 

Chairman Weisz: Was there any d iscussion when you looked at these amendments of at 
least requir ing having an attempt to notify the parents? A reasonable attempt, which I think 
is s imi lar to the language above it? 

Rep. Mooney: No,  there wasn't any d iscussion on that. I th ink that, in general terms ,  when 
I visited with Janel l  Moos from N .D .  CAWS, the idea was that by making it a "may" and 
removing the related fol low-up care, that it puts the physician in more of a d iscretionary 
role, based on the circumstances that they might be faced with; so that they can try to 
assess, based on those individuals' circumstances, what might be best for the minor. 

Chairman Weisz: Is that a motion? 

Rep. Mooney: I would make that a motion .  

Rep. Oversen: Second . 

Chairman Weisz: Ok, committee. Discussion of the amendment. Changes "shal l" to 
"may" , so it e l iminates the requ irement that the physician or whoever has to provide the 
services does el iminate the fol low-up care. So everyone understands the amendment? 

Rep Fehr: I 'm going to resist the amendment. I 'm not crazy about the word ing of it. I th ink 
we can amend it better than that 

Rep. Damschen: I th ink the amendment is an improvement, but somehow I 'm 
uncomfortable with this b i l l  yet. I 'm not sure I can support the amendment. I 'm not even 
sure why I 'm uncomfortable with it. 
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Rep. Becker: I 'm uncomfortable with it, also, but I th ink I know why. I can't support when 
you're taking the parents out of the equation here. 

Rep. Musc ha: As a parent, I total ly agree with you ,  Rep. Becker. The only th ing I do have 
to say is, I remember a fel low-teacher, and this is not too many years ago. She was 
teaching in a d ifferent school d istrict, had been teach ing in a d ifferent d istrict. For whatever 
reason ,  we were ta lk ing about d ifferent situations in schools ,  and she had a story that one 
of her students had come to her, and it was the girl 's father that was abusing her. H is  
stance was that i t  was his daughter, i t  was h is family, so he could do whatever he wanted . 
To me, this b i l l  speaks to those extreme cases. I know that you can always reach out and 
say, what if this? What if that? But there are some of those "what if '  cases, and being it's 
permissive, I also once was cal led for one of my husband's nephews. H is  parents cou ldn't 
be found.  He was in a car accident where one gal was actual ly fa irly seriously injured . They 
cou ldn't find the parents, so another sister-in-law and I went to the hospita l ,  as we were 
home. We had to take h im into Fargo because our sma l l  town hospital wouldn 't do what he 
needed . And it wasn't an ambulance that was needed for h im.  So there are cases, where 
parents aren't around , or l ike in the case of this one ga l ,  it was her actual dad . Those are 
the cases we need to th ink about, too .  

Rep. Becker: Those k inds of examples, there are exceptions to every ru le ,  and my heart 
goes out to those people, and I wou ld agree with you on those exemptions .  But I don't 
know if we can define enough of them, and I just have to go back to the general setting 
that, when parents are not i nvolved , of course there's going to be exceptions but can we 
name enough of them,  or would be try to put down 20 exemptions? Then I don't know if we 
have a b i l l  any more . 

Rep. Oversen: While I 'm not a parent, I can speak to the perspective of a you ng woman 
who knows many people my age who have been impacted by sexual assau lt; people very 
close to me. And I know how important it is that they have access to a health care provider 
without fear of their parents finding out. That might prohibit them from seeking care . And if 
the goal is to get them into seeking care, and then they are able to d iscuss with these 
trained nurse examiners what their options are , then they can seek law enforcement's 
involvement; they might seek care from domestic violence advocates, and they might 
choose to go to their parents. But if they're not first getting to a health care provider, that 
chain m ight stop altogether. So what this does is it a l lows that minor to seek healthcare 
when they've been involved in a very dangerous and a very h urtfu l situation .  Even not 
being a parent, I can understand that concern , and I see why parents would want to be part 
of that conversation ,  and hopefu lly they have a good enough relationship with their kids that 
they can .  But I th ink the young people at risk here deserve access to that hea lth care first 
and foremost. So I wi l l  be supporting the amendment and the b i l l .  

Rep. Mooney: I can't state emphatical ly enough ,  I remember what i t  was like to be a young 
g irl and a young woman,  and be in positions of profound discomfort, that even then I felt it 
was inappropriate to go back to my mother. That was an era, though; that was a time when 
it was very d ifficult to ta lk with your parents about such things. And we've come so far in our 
abi l ity , my chi ldren speak very freely with me and I rea l ly appreciate that, and I encourage 
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that. Even in  today's world , any barrier that's put in p lace that keeps a young person ,  male 
or female, from being able to seek the necessary help that they may need to be able to get 
the help they need , I just can't say strongly enough how much I th ink that is part of our role 
as legislators to make sure they can receive the help that they need without that fear. 

Chairman Weisz: I share some of the concerns here with parental consent. I a lso certain ly 
share the concern that Rep. Muscha brought out, having to do with sometimes the parent 
as the perpetrator becomes a real issue. I don't know if this wou ld answer some of the 
concerns.  You add your "may" language to the minor, and then it says, "to the minor 
without the consent of the minor's parent or guard ian . "  If the provider deems it appropriate. 
I n  other words ,  they would not have to if they deemed it appropriate . I don't know if that 
addresses the other concerns .  I 'm just throwing it out there . It may not address those 
concerns,  and that's fine. That, to me at least, impl ies that they have to try to notify the 
parents un less the provider deems it's not appropriate for whatever reason.  

Rep. Damschen: I defin itely hear the arguments on both sides . I agree with both sides, 
and that's what makes it so tough .  I wonder, would there be a benefit even if it was a fami ly 
member that was the perpetrator, that they be brought in and confronted . Then the other 
side of me says , how about the occasional case where the person is falsely accused? This 
is a tough bi l l  for me to make a decis ion on. I know I d idn 't clear anyth ing up, but I made my 
comment. 

Chairman Weisz: I assume one of the issues is ,  if someone within the family is 
responsible ,  and they have the abi l ity to proh ibit a forensic test or whatever, or even that 
they go and seek treatment, then obviously the evidence is gone. At the same time, you 
wou ld hope the forensic services would prove the innocence of a false accusation .  I just 
offered it as a suggestion to see if that might make it. Maybe it doesn't address the 
concerns enough for those who are concerned on the parental rights side, wh ich I share . I 
always bel ieve parents should be in charge. 

Rep. Porter: The mandatory reporting requirements that we have in the example g iven by 
Rep .  Muscha; once somebody finds out that a crime has been committed , even under this 
m inor's emergency care provision , even if it's enacted and it's the father, and the exam is 
g iven; once the physician or other healthcare provider knows what the circumstances were, 
they're requ ired by law to report it to law enforcement, who then has to start an 
investigation into the crime committed . 

Chairman Weisz: I don't d isagree, but it does get back to if someone comes in .  I mean , if 
an ad u lt comes in ,  they can refuse to be treated and refuse to have the forensic services 
done. 

Rep. Porter: Getting to my next question ,  during testimony it was related that they thought 
this word ing also al lowed someone to refuse , and I sti l l  don't see that as a component of 
th is .  With this new language, it confuses me even more that we're saying that the 
healthcare provider can refuse because we changed the "shal l" to a "may,"  so we're letting 
the hea lthcare provider refuse to treat the patient. I 'm sti l l  unclear what we're trying to get 
around , and what we're trying to get away from because we're not gett ing away from our 
mandatory requ irements to report; we're not getting away from the healthcare professional 
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being mandated to report the crime. Now we're letting them say, I 'm not comfortable even 
doing this examination as a healthcare provider. So they can pick and choose if they want 
to do the forensic exam. To me it clouds the issue even more. I 'd l ike to know what the 
problem is, and what we're trying to fix. I don't think this fixes anyth ing 

Chairman Weisz: I can't speak to the sponsors of the leg is lation , but the only issue that I 
see that I cou ld argue that you need fixing , if you can refuse those services; the parent or 
guard ian can refuse those services, and that's lost if someone in the fami ly is the 
perpetrator and they don't want that to come out, can they refuse to let this be provider; and 
then the evidence is lost. But I can't speak if that's the actual  intent. That's the on ly thing 
that I see is potentially being a problem if you know the parent or guard ian ,  who is maybe 
part of the problem , can say "no, I'm not going to al low these forensic services be done." 
But I th ink you're absolutely right, the main language does seem to real ly c loud the issue 
because it isn't real ly addressing the problem of should there be a test done, and it's just 
saying the provider can opt out of treating a minor. 

Rep. Porter: And then going on a l ittle further, in that question , do you read sub 2 as 
emancipating a minor for the purposes of this examination that they can both ask for the 
examination and refuse the examination ,  and act as an emancipated adu lt in  the process , 
that we're g iving l imited emancipation to a minor in this section? 

Chairman Weisz: My reading wou ld say it's unclear, but I think you could certa in ly argue 
that it g ives them that abi l ity to also deny, but I don't know if it's clear. That's another good 
point. 

Rep. Hofstad: I t  would seem to me that the bi l l  would suggest that the minor's on ly course 
of action is to go to a physician .  If that minor goes to anyone else; to a law enforcement 
official or the entire l ist of people that are requ ired to report, then we passed that threshold 
and that investigation starts . 

Chairman Weisz: I don't bel ieve they sti l l  have the abi l ity to force the minor, for example ,  to 
do the forensics. If the minor wou ld come to the police station and say, I th ink I 've been 
sexually assau lted . If they said , Ok, it was my father, or uncle, or some other, the question 
to me in those cases, is there a way to clean it up? But I don't necessarily want to g ive the 
minor the abi l ity to resist the services either. I do th ink the language may be u nclear. Up 
here it says, if you look at section1 , which I th ink was, we d id a lot of work on that over the 
sessions, it says, this does not authorize a minor to withhold consent to emergency 
examination , care or treatment. I n  that case, at least for there , even though the minor has 
the abi l ity to consent to treatment if they can't get ahold of the parent, they don't have the 
abi l ity to say, no, you can't. I th ink that language needs to be clearer, to me, even if you 
adopt sub-section 2 that it has to be clear that the minor can't withhold the testing or the 
care , for one. I do agree the "may" from the standpoint of the physician becomes 
problematic, or hea lthcare provider or whoever. It doesn't specify they're not withholding it 
because they can't get parental consent. It just says they don't have to do it. That is 
defin itely problematic. I don't th ink that's our purpose. 

Rep. Damschen: What would happen if you just added "victim of sexual assau lt" to what is 
now sub 1 ?  
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Chairman Weisz: That's a good question . 

Rep. Porter: I th ink that you would just add the words "forensic services" up in  sub 1 .  

Chairman Weisz: Do you th ink that sexual assault is already in  there because, " in a life
threaten ing situation," would that be defined as that? So you would need to add "sexual 
assau lt, " a lso under "emergency examination care or treatment." 

Rep. Porter: I th ink the words, "forensic services" fal ls in there. That a minor may contract 
for and receive emergency examination, forensic services, care or treatment in a l ife
threatening situation without consent. "  

Chairman Weisz: I 'm just wondering, does sexual assault qual ify as a l ife-threatening 
situation? That's my question : would we define it that way? If you put it up there, the point 
is, you want it to happen .  It m ight be an emergency situation, but does it qual ify as l ife
threatening? 

Rep. Porter: You might have to move to l ine 8 ,  after " l ife-threatening situation," and put ", 
or forensic services . "  

Chairman Weisz: Would you sti l l  need to say, "sexual assau lt and forensic services"? 

Rep. Porter: I th ink you can just get by with "forensic services." On line 8,  after the word 
"situation", ", or forensic services ."  

Rep. (not a udible): Because we're on ly talking about sexual abuse, how about physical 
abuse. If a minor is physica l ly abused, what kind of rights does the parent have then? 
Physical abuse is a reportable incident also, right? 

Chairman Weisz: Right. I guess the d ifference with physical abuse, there isn't the forensic 
test. I th ink  that they're real ly getting at here is to make sure that is done. Physical abuse, 
the physician or healthcare provider is obviously going to report that, which is going to 
trigger an investigation .  That wi l l  have to be investigated regard less of whether the minor's 
parents were contacted or not. So I th ink the whole key here is the idea of the fear that 
someone doesn't go in, and then all the evidence and everything is lost. So, whoever d id it, 
particularly if it m ight be a fami ly member, it goes on and on .  If you don't have evidence, it's 
he said-she said . So probably Rep .  Porter's suggestion puts it in there, and it sti l l  al lows it 
to be done. The assumption would be that if the minor says it was a fami ly member, that I 
would assume they wou ld do the test, contact law enforcement and not the female. 

Rep. Porter: They wou ld have to because it's sti l l  a mandatory requ ired deal . But on l ine 
1 0 , then, in  order to make this read right, you would take out the "or" after the word "care", 
and then, after the word "treatment,"  put a comma and insert "or forensic services ."  

Chairman Weisz: Do you want to just read the whole statement? 

Rep. Porter: I th ink we should vote on Rep . Mooney's amendment first. 
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Chairman Weisz: We do have a motion on the floor. 

Chairman Weisz: Further d iscussion on the amendment. 

VOICE VOTE TAKEN: MOTION FAI LS 

Chairman Weisz: Rep. Porter, you have a potential amendment. 

Rep. Porter: I would move an amendment on l ine 8: after the word "situation", to insert " ,  
or forensic services" , and then on l ine 1 0, I wou ld overstrike the word "or" and then after the 
word "treatment", I would add " ,  or forensic services. "  

Chairman Weisz: I sti l l  have a question . Maybe I 'm missing someth ing ,  but  why we don't 
need to say sexual assau lts only and forensic services? 

Rep. Porter: I th ink that the treatment of sexual assault is an emergency in itself, so I am 
under the understanding that that med ical  treatment of sexual assau lt is a lready an 
emergency, but  the forensic examination is not. 

Cha irman Weisz: So your language wou ld say, "a minor may contract for and receive 
emergency examination ,  care or treatment in a l ife-threatening situation , or forensic 
services without the consent of the minor's parent or guard ian . If he has an emergency 
med ical condition or the potential for the emergency cond ition ,  consent to emergency 
examination , care, treatment or forensic services of the minor is impl ied . "  

Rep. Porter: Then , we need to  remove the overstrike of section ,  and  remove the word 
"sub-section", and then remove sub 2, l ines 1 4- 1 7 .  

Cha irman Weisz: I also believe you need to again get rid of the "or" a n d  then put a comma 
after "treatment." And then go, "or forensic services" on l ine 1 3. So that the m inor cannot 
withhold the forensic services . 

Rep. Oversen: So the way this reads now, specifically with the second sentence, do they 
first have to take reasonable steps to contact the parents before they go ahead with the 
examination? Because then that defeats the purpose of this b i l l .  And I understand that 
we're trying to put it in there to clean it up, but a lso in putting it where the minor cannot 
withhold consent, the problem with that is that a minor or any victim of sexual assau lt has 
already been violated in such a way, and then you're going to force them into that 
examination that they don't want, that creates further vio lation .  That's why that language 
was not included in the second section .  And I don't know that the second section was clear 
on the abi l ity to withhold consent. I think that was a mistake and they d idn't properly draft 
that. But the testimony from CAWS made it clear that they want the minor to have the 
abi l ity to withhold consent from the examination as wel l .  And if we're putting it in this 
section ,  they expl icitly do not have that abi l ity . 

Chairman Weisz: I want to be clear here . Are you also saying the minor should have the 
abi l ity to withhold the forensic part? 
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Rep. Oversen: Yes, because that's part of the examination that they might not be wanting 
to be part of. And to the questions about reporting , mandatory reporting is only requ ired if 
it's suspected that it's a caregiver who is abusing or neg lecting the ch i ld ,  and it goes to 
Social Services; it does not go to law enforcement. Law enforcement are a part of CPS, but 
it goes to C PS first and then they decide if there needs to be further investigation .  

Rep. Porter: You need to  say that one again .  The first part. 

Rep. Oversen: If the mandatory reporter bel ieves it's a classmate or a boyfriend , that's not 
considered abuse and neglect under mandatory reporting laws . That's on ly if it's a parent or 
a caregiver, is my understanding from my train ing .  

Rep. Porter: There's two d ifferent parts. The first part is the mandatory report, Section 50-
25. 1 -03, Persons Requ ired and Permitted to Report. To Whom Reported . It says , any 
physician ,  nurse, optometrist, dentist, dental hyg ien ist, medical examiner, coroner or other 
medical or mental health professional ,  rel ig ious practitioner, of the heal ing arts , school 
teacher or admin istrator, school counselor, add iction counselor, social worker, chi ld care 
worker, foster parent, pol ice, law enforcement officer, juveni le court personnel ,  probation 
officer, d ivision of j uven i le service employee or member of the clergy having knowledge or 
reasonable cause to suspect that a child is abused or neglected , or has d ied as a result of 
abuse or neg lect shal l  report the circumstances to the Department if the knowledge or 
suspicion is derived from information received by that person i n  that person's official or 
professional capacity. It g ives a l ittle exemption for the clergy. The report is to the 
Department; it is not to law enforcement. 

Chairman Weisz: I t  does say here on 50-25, abused chi ld means an individ ual under the 
age of 1 8  who is suffering from abuse as defined in subd ivis ion,  caused by a person 
responsible for the ch ild's welfare. A sexual ly abused chi ld means an ind ividual under the 
age of 1 8  who is subjected by a person responsible for the chi ld's welfare. But 1 4-09.22, 
you can look that up, too ,  what they is subject to. Parent, adu lt ,  fam ily, household member, 
guard ian or other custod ian of any chi ld .  

Rep. Feh r: That is correct, and Rep . Oversen is correct that i t  refers to the parental 
capacity, the oversight of a chi ld . However, in actual practice, what happens is, for example 
if it's a s ib l ing that is abusing a sibl ing, they make reports because they say therefore the 
parents d idn't have proper oversight or whatever. So a lot of things end up going to CPS,  
and they make reports and let CPS sort i t  out .  But strictly speaking, abuse and neg lect 
goes to C PS,  not to law enforcement. 

Chairman Weisz: I j ust assumed everything was reported , and that's not the way the law 
reads. 

Cha irman Weisz: This bi l l  is becoming mudd ier by the minute. So to be clear here , if, for 
example it's a m inor and it's the boyfriend , under the law, the provider does not have to 
report. 
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Rep. Oversen: That's correct. If the provider has no reason to suspect it's a careg iver or 
guardian ,  they don't have to report it .  And that's a d iscretionary piece. They might not know. 

Rep. Fehr: In actual practice, they would turn to the person and say, we need to get law 
enforcement involved , and they would get a verbal and they would contact law enforcement 
if they needed to. 

Chairman Weisz: You're taking 1 5  or 1 6-year-old ,  is it proper to g ive them the choice of 
whether they want the forensic that could help convict whoever d id the violation ,  without 
some adult. 

Rep. Oversen: In re-reading the testimony, the first, most-important step is gett ing them to 
that sexual assau lt nurse-examiner, who is tra ined to give them those options of, do you 
want to go through with the forensic exam? Do you want to contact services? So, yes, 
we're empowering them to have that choice of whether or not they would want to go 
through with an investigation .  And that's the case with adult victims of sexual assau lt right 
now. But they have that counsel of the nurse-examiner or victim advocates who come in  to 
the hospital  if there has been a sexual assau lt. I get that that's a scary th ing that we're 
al lowing them to make that choice ,  but as a victim ,  that power has been taken away from 
them , and we're g iving them the power back to make those choices. 

Rep. Mooney: My concern would come back to what Rep. Oversen has stated . And then 
underscoring the reasonable steps to contact the minor's parent or guardian being 
unsuccessful .  That's sti l l  problematic in the intent of the bil l in  those particular 
circumstances where it's determined that it's actual ly a member of the fami ly who is 
involved . If ,  through reasonable steps, they're brought into the situation , then we've just 
exacerbated their victim ization.  What we're doing is right back to square one. 

Rep. Fehr: My question is whether Rep. Porter would consider a change to his 
amendment. 

Chairman Weisz: We haven't had a motion yet. You ' re welcome to suggest any change 
you'd l ike. 

Rep Fehr: I ' l l  move an amendment. Using what Rep. Porter had said , on l ine 8 ,  after the 
word , "situation , "  to insert the phrase "or sexual assau lt ." In l ine 1 0 , overstrike the word "or" 
after the word "treatment" ,  inserting "or forensic services." And insert the sentence,  
"reasonable steps must be made to contact the minor's parent or guard ian . "  L ine 1 2 , 
remove the overstrike over "section ."  Line 1 3 , overstrike "or" and the period becomes a 
comma. And add the phrase, "or forensic services." And overstrike subsection 2 .  

Chairman Weisz: But  the parent must be contacted , or tried to , as far as forensic services . 

Rep. Fehr: Reasonable steps meaning,  in  my mind ,  then, if the parent is the al leged 
perpetrator, they would have some j udgment in what is reasonable steps. But in any other 
case , they don't have to contact the parents before provid ing that emergency care .  But they 
sti ll need to contact the parents un less it's unreasonable to do.  
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Rep. Damschen: The only problem I see there, if the forensic services were needed to 
convict, if the al leged perpetrator was a parent, they could sti l l  refuse that, couldn't they? 
Under the proposed amendment? 

Rep. Fehr: Who cou ld refuse it? The youth? The parents? 

Rep. Damschen: If I understood your  amendment, they'd have to try to contact the parent 
before they provided forensic services? 

Chairman Weisz: If you leave the language off on l ine 1 3  that I had added, then it g ives 
the minor the abi l ity to withhold consent. And that seems to be the big issue. Most of this 
cleans up the comfort level for the parent consent, but there is some d ifference of opinion 
here on should the minor have the abi l ity to withhold consent to have the forensic services 
done. That seems to be a major issue here . I understand the concern; if the minor already 
feels violated and they don't want to, but if they're 1 4  or 1 5  , should they be al lowed to 
make that decision without, If a fami ly member is involved, obviously they wou ldn't be 
brought in, but then who wou ld make that judgment cal l? 

Rep. Fehr: We're using the existing language that's currently in  law, starting off on l ine 7,  a 
minor may contract for. . .  As far as I know, there isn't a problem in terms of what's 
currently happening with emergency services . So this just brings that into this same 
language, and that same kind of authorization .  So, presumably it shouldn't create new 
problems if we' re using that same language. It's not problematic. 

Chairman Weisz: The forensic part is a l ittle d ifferent than the emergency care . I assume it 
happens fai rly often that you do have a minor that's sexual ly assau lted . The parents are 
who knows where? Who determines if a forensic test is going to be done or not? Who has 
the authority currently? If a minor says "no," does that mean it doesn't happen? Can they 
do it without minor consent? 

Rep. Fehr: The way th ings practical ly exist in an emergency room in a hospita l, they're not 
going to hold somebody down and make them do things. The examination, as I understand, 
is pretty intrusive, so they're perhaps going to get the person calm, work with them , be 
supportive, and I th ink this is intended to be enabl ing language to al low some things to 
happen; not intended to be forceful or arm-twisting .  So I would assume that the care-givers 
there wil l  handle it as del icately as they can, to try to do an examination, but with in  their 
med ical scope. 

Rep. Muscha: Did we not hear some quite emotional testimony about this whole issue in 
Grafton du ring the interim committee? About a case of mom and dad and the daughter that 
stood up  and talked? And wasn't that also sexual assau lt? But it ta lked about how things 
were hand led and not hand led . I don't remember all the detai ls, but j ust to th row out one 
other point; Both Rep .  Mooney and I were at the Few(?) Summit that was last fal l  in 
Bismarck. Their main speaker, who is working with human trafficking and prostitutes and 
things in  Wil l iston, and her testimony and that of other law enforcement, etc. said that the 
majority of victims start out being abused by male fami ly members . It's a huge proportion of 
where some of the issues originate. 
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Chairman Weisz: Does Rep. Fehr's amendment satisfy you r  issues? 

Rep. Mooney: Before we act on the amendment, could we have Austin type it out so we 
could actual ly see what it looks l ike .  I would be reluctant to vote without seeing it. 

Chairman Weisz: Is there some further discussion .  Rep. Fehr, do you want to withdraw 
your motion for now? 

Rep. Fehr: I withd raw my motion. 

Chairman Weisz: If there's any further d iscussion on what we do or don't l ike, let's have it 
now. If there's some further amendments, or someth ing ,  so I can do whatever for tomorrow 
or Wednesday at the latest. 

Rep. Becker: I th ink ,  at the end of the day, the stumbl ing block and the #1 issue that we 
can't get the right word ing or get our hands around is, basical ly taking a parental 
responsibi l ity out. As a father, and I would ask each of you to th ink inward ly, if you're a 
father or a mother, or some day to be a mother, there's ups and downs and there's things 
that come along in  l ife that we can 't control .  I can guarantee that each of us had had to deal 
with things that were heart-wrench ing.  As a parent, I don't know how we could look 
ourselves in the mi rror and where the parent is the last to know what's going on .  I can't 
imagine the language that we cou ld come up with that I could vote "yes' on this type of b i l l. 

Cha irman Weisz; Based on Rep . Fehr's comments ,  my understanding now would be, if 
indeed a minor came in ,  sexually assau lted , and if they can't get ahold of the parents, the 
minor says they don't want their forensics, they're not doing it. Would that be your  
assumption ,  Rep. Fehr? Because we're not going to force a minor to take the forensic test. 
And they don't have permission because they can 't get ahold of the parent or guard ian .  So 
even currently, today, the minor can withhold consent. 

Rep. Oversen: The minor cou ld only withhold consent if the parents weren't contacted . If 
the parents are present, and want the examination to happen.  

Chairman Weisz: I mean i t  can happen today. I just wanted to clarify . It isn't necessarily 
someth ing new. The whole argument is, when the parent can be notified . So we're kind of 
narrowing it down to where we understand the issue that we agree or disagree with .  

Rep. Damschen: I th ink the forensic part of i t  is an issue. Al lowing the minor to refuse that, 
because then if the parent is the perpetrator, and the victim is afraid to identify h im ,  they 
refuse the forensic services. Then there is nothing to convict the parent, either. There 
doesn't seem to be a clean way to work this. 

Chairman Weisz: Committee, you can sleep on this. Austin wil l d raft the amendments . And 
Rep . Fehr can make sure they're what he wanted them to say. So that we can take a look 
at them tomorrow. This is not a simple th ing .  I have rea l concerns about parental 
involvement, but I can certain ly understand the issues involved on the other side. 
Unfortunately, most of the sexual assaults on minors are family members .  That is extremely 
hard to even put your arms around , but that's what happens. It's hard to comprehend that 
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we wou ld do that to our own chi ldren .  Unfortunately that is what happens, so I certain ly 
understand the concern here.  

Chairman Weisz closed the hearing on HB 1 31 4. 
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Chairman Weisz: Cal led the hearing to order on HB 1 31 4 .  

Jonathan Byers: From Dept. of Human Services. 

C hairman Weisz: If the minor does not want forensics, where does the law enforcement 
come in? 

Byers: No physician is going to make the patient go through an exam for forensics. 

C h airman Weisz: There is no circumstances where the law enforcement would 

Byers: this is a one-time opportunity 

Chairman Weisz: 

Byers: 

Rep. Porter: in discussing the new sub 2 ,  the minor could refuse the exam. The physician 
I tal ked to said they wouldn't do the exam. Then when the patient wants to do the test, but 
not involve law enforcement and the physician has a mandate to report 

Byers: The physician only has to report it if it is a sexual  assault 

Rep. Porter: Law enforcement talked with me about 

Byers: 

Rep. Porter: I 'm not seeing the problem where we don't need the language. 

Byers: 
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Rep. Porter: 

Byers: 

Rep. Oversen: 

Byers: 

Rep. Oversen: 

Byers: As the law is now they can refuse the exam.  

Rep. Oversen: 

(RECORDING STARTS H ERE) 

Byers: I t 's going to be the same kind of exam they would get in a forensic med ical exam, 
which would involve a trained doctor that is specifically intending to look for signs of 
penetration ,  and those kinds of things. Those may be two different processes 

Rep. Porter: It real ly would come down to how that physician documents in the med ical 
charts of what they d id and why they d id it. And the procedure performed . 

Byers: I th ink you are right on that. 

Chairman Weisz: Thank you for coming.  I bel ieve Rep.  Fehr has three suggested sets of 
amendments. 

Rep. Fehr: Can I hand them out and explain them? (See Handouts #1 , #2 and #3) 

Chairman Weisz: You can hand them out, and we' l l  take a look at them . Comm ittee, j ust 
from what I'm hearing,  it does rea l ly seem like the main issue is the idea, can the minor 
choose to not g ive consent to do the forensic test. Because everyth ing else appears to 
already be in place. I s  that the understanding that the rest of you have? U nder current law? 
That's real ly the issue in front of us. Obviously, they can get treated now without consent. 
They can ,  from everything I 've heard , they're going to treat them, and they obviously can do 
the forensic if the minor requests it without consent. The issue seems to be, if the minor 
doesn't g ive consent, can the parent or guard ian say, do it anyway? Is  that the 
understanding that we're all at here? So at least we know what we're trying to get at. 

Rep. Fehr: The first one is where we left things yesterday afternoon , trying to move 
everything i nto that fi rst section ,  and just having one section; deleting section 2. It has the 
numbering crossed out. The second one says Amendment 2 at the top ,  and that is an 
attempt to leave the first section as is, and to clean up the second sub-section .  The th i rd is 
a paragraph handed out. This is the I l l inois example that Rep.  Porter had emai led us. If we 
l ike the th i rd one, the l ine 3 that says sections 1 2 , 1 3 , etc. , that's I l l inois l icense code. We 
would have to change that. Essentia l ly what you have is one; an attempt to put everything 
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Chairman Weisz: I n  you r  second one, I notice you left the language as "may" instead of 
"sha l l . "  Was that on purpose or an oversight? 

Rep. Fehr: No. The intent here is to al low physicians to have authority to provide the 
emergency med ical forensic care to a victim of sexual assault. So, real ly it isn't d i rected 
towards the victim .  It's d irected toward the physician having the authority to do it. They also 
have the flexib i l ity to handle situations in a sensitive way. 

Cha irman Weisz: Say it's my local smal l-town physician ,  and he says , "No,  I 'm not treating 
you un less mom and dad are here . "  Is that your  intent? 

Rep. Fehr: The sentence concludes with the clause, "without the consent of the minor's 
parent or guard ian . "  

Chairman Weisz: But  i t  g ives the physician an out. He doesn't have to treat them, right? 
He can say, "Nope. I just won't do it because I want your mom and dad here."  

Rep. Fehr: Theoretica l ly that's true. This is enabl ing language, not requiring language. 

Chairman Weisz: I don't normally do th is, but ,  Janel le, would you come to the pod ium? 
(Asked Janel le Moos to come to pod ium. )  Your  issue, the reason for the b i l l  that's in front 
of us, is because some providers aren't wi l l ing to provide the services without the parents 
or? Explain to the committee exactly where you see the problem. Based on what we have 
heard on current practices. So what is the problem here you are trying to fix? 

Janelle Moos, Executive Director of the CAWS North Dakota: We've had instances of 
both s ituations. So, where a victim comes in and requests one, parents deny it; and the 
other way around; parents request it and the victim says they don't want to. The way we 
drafted this ,  and I talked to Vonette qu ite a bit about it, is that the way sub-section 2 is 
d rafted , it says "upon the request ,"  so if I 'm not coming in  and requesting one, I 'm actua l ly 
saying I don't want one. So that's the way we drafted it in this lang uage. And in  looking at 
the amendments, my preference would be amendment 2 because it cleans it up.  It does 
change the language from "shall" to "may" and it says "reasonable attempt to contact the 
parent," but a victim cou ld sti l l  very wel l  say that they don't want to have the forensic exam. 
So I th ink the amendment 2 cleans up subsection 2 .  And that would be our preference. 

Cha irman Weisz: So, you're OK with the idea that a physician could say,  "No,  I won't do it 
because we're not contacting the parents. "  

Moos: No.  We would sti l l  prefer that the victim have that option .  If they so choose to have 
the forensic exam.  They should sti l l  be able to have the forensic exam. 

Chairman Weisz: By going from "shal l" to "may", that provider could say, "No.  I 'm not 
going to provide any services . I 'm not going to do this unti l  I get your  parents in the room ." 
Or whatever. That's the way I bel ieve the language reads. I know it's enabl ing ,  but if that's 
your intent. 
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Moos: No.  It wou ldn't be our intent. If a victim is choosing,  and saying, " I  wou ld l ike a 
forensic exam,  which is the way it's d rafted at this point in  t ime, we would hope that the 
physician would adhere to what the victim's request is .  

Chairman Weisz: Have to honor that request without the parent being there. 

Rep. Mooney: Along that same vein ,  would a med ical professional or a doctor refuse to 
provide med ica l help in that way? Whether they're an adu lt or a minor? Would they do that? 
Can they do that? 

Moos: I th ink there are two d ifferences . Say you're a sexual assault victim coming i n .  You 
have to go through a screening process, to screen for all these other th ings before you 
actual ly get to the point where you've determined that you need the forensic exam .  So 
those two things are very d istinctly d ifferent. You can sti l l  get the medical services. The 
forensic exam is for the col lection of evidence because of the sexual assau lt. I th ink we 
want to keep those two issues separate and d istinct .  

Rep. Fehr: I don't th ink "shal l" or "may" is the issue. Understand that physicians have their 
eth ical code.  They are going the best they know how to serve their patients . And if you say 
they shal l  do it, and if they don't want to do it, they wi l l  document it as someth ing else, and 
they wi l l  not do it .  I think leaving the language to give them some flexibi l ity makes some 
sense. 

Rep. Oversen: As I 'm reading through Amendment 2 ,  the physician may provide the 
services without the consent, but they must make steps to contact the parents. Can they 
sti l l  provide the services if the parents say "no . "? If they are requ i red to try to contact the 
parents, the parents then have the option to say no, but the physician cou ld sti l l  
theoretically provide that without the consent. So what's the purpose of contacting the 
parents? 

Chairman Weisz: I bel ieve the way it's written ,  they can defin itely provide the services 
without the consent. It's strictly a notification .  I guess you could argue, but at some point the 
parents are going to find out anyway. I guess it's just saying they need to take steps 
because the reasonable steps are made in the language after the consent. So the provider 
has a l ready done the care without the consent of the minor's parent or guardian . Then it 
says , reasonable steps have to be made to contact them. 

Rep. Oversen: Shouldn't it be something like, made to notify the parents of the services 
provided? Just contacting leaves it open .  If it's notification, I think the words should be, to 
notify the parents or guardian .  

Rep. Porter: I would l ike to hear Mr. Byers' thoughts on Amendment 2 and how it fits into 
the real world practice of these situations, and the criminal side of these situations, and see 
if this is someth ing that is workable. Is it fixing a perceived problem? Is it doing noth ing? I 
would l ike to hear from the law enforcement side. 

Byers: I don't see a lot of problems with the way the bi l l  is written .  If you ' re interested in 
seeing that exams are able to be done, even if the parents don't consent; I don't want to 
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see anyth ing amended here that would take that away. So I question the "reasonable steps 
must be taken to contact the minor's parent or guard ian . "  It doesn't necessarily say in  
words that it's going to a l low them to object, but  I th ink that there may be a question that 
physicians read it that way; that they' l l  read the fact that they have to contact them into 
meaning that the parents get to object. Here's why it's so important that you don't wrest this 
upon the parent's right to object or not: somewhere between 85-95 percent of sexual abuse 
happens by somebody the victim knows . Most common scenarios are half-s ib l ing ,  step
sibl ing, in the same residential situation. One of those parents is probably not going to want 
a report to be made. Another common scenario would be aunts and uncles or cousins of 
the victim . Again ,  loyalties i n  the fami ly may make somebody not want a report and 
investigation to happen . Another frequent one is g randpa.  Again, mom or dad may not want 
that investigation to happen .  So , when it comes down to law enforcement reasons to be 
doing this investigation , there are a lot of reasons to say that the parents in this one 
particu lar area should not get the right to object to an exam being done on that ch i ld .  

Chairman Weisz: U nder either the orig inal bi l l  or amendment 2 ,  does each one al low the 
minor to withhold consent for a forensic test, without the parents. 

Byers: I bel ieve that the bi l l  as it's written does al low the minor to withhold that because it 
says, upon the request of a minor ." And in  fact, in  practice , the minor is going to get to 
withhold their consent because, even if there's some language in  here that would make it 
sound l ike the m inor doesn't get to withhold their consent, they're j ust not going to do that 
exam without their consent. 

Rep. Porter: In the amendment 2 language then ,  with what Rep . Oversen said , changing 
the word "contact" to "notify" so it's j ust a notification, not the abi l ity to have the contact for 
the parents to step in and say yes or no.  

Byers: I th ink something in the nature of what Rep .  Oversen ind icated , if  i t  said someth ing 
l ike, "reasonable steps must be made to notify the minor's parent or guard ian of the care 
that was provided ."  That doesn't make it sound l ike it has to happen first, before they do the 
care and let them insert themselves. It simply says we gotta notify them of what we've done 
or are doing .  

Rep. Rich Becker: Just a comment. Someth ing new h it me today. I 'm very much opposed 
to taking notification of parents out of the equation .  But the new thought that I had today is, 
somebody used the wording "enabl ing," but I don't know if we' re real ly helping say a 1 4-
year-old here if it's common knowledge that a minor doesn't have to give consent to a 
forensic exam,  that enables them, and they're probably not going to do it. How are we 
helping that person when, as you said, 85-90 percent are step-fathers ,  step-brothers, half
brothers, whatever? I th ink we're enabl ing the further continuance of th is shamefu l, habitual 
practices that go on in our society. To me, another reason for being against this bi l l  is we're 
enabl ing minors to cont inue.  They may think they're protecting or protecting themselves 
from further harm . But I don't see that. I see , by enabl ing, and by not having to report this, 
they're on ly sett ing themselves up for further instances of it. 

Byers: What you're saying is exactly one of the first th ings that I brought up when I began 
talking about this with Janel le .  We don't want to pass the word , or make this In b lazing 



House Human Services Committee 
HB 1314 
February 17, 2015 
Page 6 

letters that they have the right not to consent. And that's why I k ind of l ike the language in  
the orig inal  b i l l  is because i t  doesn't spel l  i t  out  in blazing letters, but  you can read i t  in there 
to say it's j ust upon their request that they get the exam done. So I th ink I 'm with you that I 
don't th ink we want to publ icize this to minors that you don't have to have these things 
done. And then let the work of the professionals happen .  When they get i n  contact with the 
ch i ld at the hospita l ,  or whatever, that they can ta lk  to them about, "you're not going to 
rea l ize this ,  but these are some things you're going to have to th ink about, and you ' re going 
to regret this later." Let them do their work. 

Rep. Porter: I l ike amendment 2. That "upon the request" language that does throw the 
cloud up is removed . Where it is, just as the person's presenting .  Someone is presenting to 
a healthcare provider. So if the person is presenting to a healthcare provider, they're there 
for a reason .  At that point in  time, they've already presented . So the physician or the 
healthcare provider is going to use their judgment and their professional train ing in  order to 
ta lk to the victim and it's a l ready been told to us that they aren't going to do something by 
starting a proposa l d rip and putting the patient out and doing an exam.  To me, that g ray 
area of "upon the request" doesn't need to be in the law. It just needs to be a clear law that 
if the person is presenting to the healthcare provider, that they can have the test without the 
consent of the minor or the guard ian .  Amendment 2 takes that cloud out that you wou ldn 't 
want to advertise. 

Chairman Weisz: Based on what I 'm hearing,  I suggest we look at Amendment 2, we add 
language that says notify the minor's parent or guard ian of the care p rovided at the end, so 
reasonable steps must be made to notify the m inor's parent or guardian of the care 
provided . I d idn't l ike the "may" language, but Rep .  Fehr  had a good argument, so at this 
point, I would leave the "may" language in  there the way it is. 

Rep. Porter: I move amendment #2 with the language overstriking "contact" and inserting 
"notify" and then at the end, after "guard ian", insert "of the care provided ." 

Rep. Hofstad: Second.  

Rep. Fehr: If we use the term "notify" , does that mean if  we're talking about an ER,  they ca 
basical ly just send a letter to the parents kind of after the fact? Because if that's the case , I 
would have to resist the motion because the best outcome is that the parents are notified at 
the ER because I th ink this is happening at the ER, the fami ly gets involved , and the fami ly 
can then have the opportunity to be supportive and so on .  I 'm just concerned that "notify" 
may not involve them the way it should . 

Chairman Weisz: I think the language is somewhat clear that it occurs.  It generally wi l l  
occur after the emergency treatment has happened . So they're not going to withhold 
treatment unti l the reasonable steps . They're going to do what's necessary .  And in  the case 
of where 85-95 percent are probably with in that immediate fami ly, I 'm guessing they're not 
going to be wanting to contact them. If that information comes to them in the examination 
that it might have been the step-brother or U ncle Joe or whoever. They're not going to be 
contacting them to te l l  them that your  chi ld is in the ER here and . . .  I know that's what we 
struggle with here, between the parental notification vs . ,  but unfortunately most cases, it's 
some type of fami ly member involved here .  Do they need to be notified? This wil l do that, 
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make it clear that they are notified , that the emergency care happened . We d id take out the 
language of fol low-up care ,  which I th ink was a problem for a lot of us.  This is a 
compromise, but I can understand the concerns here .  Further debate on the amendments? 

Rep. Becker: All I can say is that we've taken a bad bi l l  and made it worse. 

Rep. Damschen: If you want another alternative, we could borrow some language. I don't 
know if it would be more acceptable or not. We have some exist ing language that cou ld 
probably be adapted to this section out of 1 4-1 0-1 9 ,  dea l ing with a m inor's consent to pre
natal care and pregnancy services . It would have a Subsection 2, and it wou ld say "a 
physician or other healthcare provider may provide emergency med ical care or forensic 
services related to sexual assault to a minor without the consent of a parent or guard ian . "  
And then borrowing from existing language p lus some language that was in some 
examples we saw from another state , "the costs incurred by the physician or other 
hea lthcare provider for performing services under this section may not be submitted to a 
third party payer without the consent of the minor's parent or guard ian ."  Then ,  another 
section wou ld say, "if a minor requests confidential services pursuant to this section ,  
physician or other healthcare professional shal l  encourage the minor to involve the parent 
or guardian . The physician or other healthcare professional or healthcare faci l ity may not 
be compel led against their best judgment to treat a minor based on the minor's own 
consent. A physician or other healthcare professiona l ,  who pursuant to this subsection 
provides care to a minor may inform the parent or guard ian of the minor of any care given 
or needed if the physician or other healthcare professional d iscusses with the minor the 
reasons for informing the parent or guard ian prior to the d isclosure ,  and if, in the judgment 
of the physician or the hea lthcare professiona l ,  fa i lu re to inform the parent or guard ian 
wou ld seriously jeopard ize the health of the minor, surgery or hospital ization is needed , or 
informing the parent or guard ian would benefit the health of the minor." That may not a l l  
have to be in there ,  but i t  does leave some options. But it's long . 

Rep. Porter: I look at them as two d ifferent things. One is crime, and the other is normal 
patient-physician relationships.  I l i ke Amendment 2 with the changes in it, and I 'm 
comfortable with the changes in it .  And I 'm comfortable with what we've done. 

C hairman Weisz: I 'm not stopping d iscussion at this point ,  but I th ink we wil l vote on this 
amendment and we' l l  see what happens to it. If it fai ls, we' l l  go forward . If it passes, we' l l  
a lso look at additional amendments .  So, further d iscussion? We're looking at Amend ment 2 
with the changes. 

Rep. Fehr: I l i ke Amendment 2 except the word "notify," so I wi l l  resist the motion. 

Chairman Weisz: If there is no further d iscussion , the clerk wi l l  ca l l  the rol l  on the 
amendment. 

ROLL CALL VOTE ON AMENDM ENT: YES: 9 NO: 4 ABSENT: 0 

MOTION CARRIED 

C hairman Weisz: Are there add itional amendments? 
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Rep. Fehr The bi l l  as presented does not make any changes to section 1 ,  I don't l ike 
section 1 ,  and I would l ike to make a change to section I ,  if that was a l lowed . My point is 
that here i n  section 1 ,  where it says on l ine 1 1  , reasonable steps to contact the minor's 
parent or guardian are unsuccessfu l ,  I th ink that's contrary to what people do.  I can't 
imagine that i n  a l ife-threatening situation in ER,  that they would try to contact the parents 
before hand l i ng the l ife-threatening situation .  I 'm sure they'd just ignore the law. I can't 
imagine they wou ld fol low the law. But since the bi l l  is in front of us,  I th ink we should c lean 
it up .  

Chairman Weisz: And your  suggestion , then? 

Rep. Fehr: My suggestion would be on l ine 1 1 ,  where the word " impl ied , "  put a period . The 
rest of that sentence,  to insert the language that we just put in amendment 2 ,  that 
"reasonable steps must be made to contact the parent or guardian of the care that's 
provided ." Whatever that language is. 

Chairman Weisz: So, "reasonable steps must be made to notify the minor's parent of the 
care provided ." Everyone understand? Is  that a motion? 

Rep. Fehr: I ' l l  make that as a motion .  

Chairman Weisz: I s  there a second? 

Rep. Mooney: Second . 

Chairman Weisz: Discussion on that amendment? 

Rep. Porter: I guess I don't read that the same way as Rep. Fehr does. Because that's the 
section of code ta lk ing with the emergency examination .  It just says that it's impl ied , and 
reasonable steps to contact the minor's parents or guard ians are unsuccessfu l .  If it 's tru ly 
an emergency, then the reasonable steps to contact the minor's parents are ,  we're going to 
treat the emergency, and then ,  after the patient is stable, then we' l l  try to make the 
necessary contacts. I don't th ink that it needs to be changed . I th ink that it works the way 
that it is .  It fits the rea l world practice of med icine. The reasonable step is at any t ime: it's 
not prior to taking care of the l ife-threaten ing emergency situation,  which sub-section 1 is 
ta lking about. 

Rep. Fehr: While I agree that the words "reasonable steps" does give a l itt le wigg le room, 
and I can't imagine that they wou ld l iteral ly get on the phone to contact the parents wh i le 
the person is laying there, and their l ife is in  the balance. But I th ink  the amendment makes 
it more clear that they don't have to first make those attempts , and then, on ly if they're 
unsuccessfu l ,  then they can proceed with treatment of the l ife-threatening situation .  

Rep. Porter: The other component of this i s  that this section i s  not just deal ing with a 
healthcare faci l ity. It's deal ing with ambu lance services . When I look at this ,  our  reasonable 
attempt to contact the minor's parents or guardian don't happen unti l the patient is turned 
over to the physician in the emergency department. And so I don't th ink that changing this 
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makes it any clearer for who it's intended for. For part of who it's intended for. And I think 
that the way the verbiage is in there now, works for al l  of the emergency situations with a 
minor. It works from the EMS standpoint .  It works from the volunteer ski patrol standpoint. It 
works throughout. Yes, when there's time. This is a l ife-threaten ing situation ,  when there's 
t ime, someone's going to try get ahold of the parents. But that reasonable steps is a 
component that it may not be the volunteer ski patrol .  It may not be the ambulance 
provider. The reasonable step may be the physician after the patient is stabi l ized or maybe 
out of emergency surgery. But that reasonable component is the part that works for a l l  of 
the emergency situation . 

Chairman Weisz: Further d iscussion? I ' l l  try for a voice vote. 

VOICE VOTE TAKEN 

MOTION FAILED 

Chairman Weisz: Are there further amendments? 

Rep. Porter: I wou ld move a Do Pass As Amended to HB 1 3 1 4 .  

Rep. Seibel :  I second . 

C hairman Weisz: Any further d iscussion? Seeing none, the clerk wi l l  cal l  the rol l .  

ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN :  

YES: 9 N O :  4 ABSENT: 0 

MOTION CARRIES 

Rep. Mooney wil l carry the bi l l .  

Chairman Weisz closed the hearing on HB 1 314.  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1314 

Page 1, line 14, replace "Upon the request of a minor who is a victim of sexual assault. a" with 
"6." 

Page 1, line 15, replace "shall" with "may" 

Page 1, line 15, remove "related" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "to the" with "to a minor who is a victim of' 

Page 1, line 16, remove "and any related followup care to the minor" 

Page 1, line 17, after the underscored period insert "Reasonable steps must be made to notify 
the minor's parent or guardian of the care provided." 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1314: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(9 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1314 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 14, replace "Upon the request of a minor who is a victim of sexual assault, a" 
with "6" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "shall" with "may" 

Page 1, line 15, remove "related" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "to the" with "to a minor who is a victim of' 

Page 1, line 16, remove "and any related followup care to the minor" 

Page 1, line 17, after the underscored period insert "Reasonable steps must be made to 
notify the minor's parent or guardian of the care provided." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l /resol ution: 

A bi l l  re lating to consent for emergency medical care for a minor who has been sexually 
assau lted 

Minutes: No attachments 

Representative Lois Delmore , District 43 ,  introduced H B  1 3 1 4  to the Senate Human 
Services Committee. The b i l l  a l lows minor vict ims of sexual assau lt to receive emergency 
med ical care or forensic services without parental consent. The b i l l  was amended in  the 
House so that reasonable steps must be made to notify the minor's parents or guard ian . 
Statistics show that this g roup is the largest g roup of sexual  assault victims and they are 
twice as l ikely to be sexual ly victim ized as adu lts . Sometimes they report, but often they 
report to peers or to others who may urge them to report and be examined .  They may not 
d isclose to their parents. In some cases , fami ly members are involved , as wel l  as alcohol . 
Sometimes the vict im passed out and had trouble remembering what happened . Often , 
they blame themselves for what happened to them . Usual ly nu rses who are specifically 
trained with 40 to 96 hours at a min imum on evidence col lection techn iques, use of 
special ized equ ipment, change of evidence requ i rements, how to g ive expert testimony, 
injury detection ,  all of which is part of a team who col lects the information .  They ask 
questions whether the victim wants to receive a forensic exam to col lect the evidence of the 
assault .  These nurses can have a positive impact on prosecution of the cases and they 
a lso provide information to the victim on the process the victim needs to go through if it 
goes to court .  

(2 : 30) 
Chairman Judy Lee asked for a defin ition of "reasonable" . 

Representative Delmore stated the House added th is to the amendment, as they thought 
it was pertinent and important for parents to be notified, at least after the examination . 
Deferred the defin ition .  

Senator Dever fu l ly understands and supports this ,  i f  the minor's parent or  guard ian is 
suspected as the perpetrator. How do you justify it otherwise? 
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Representative Delmore assumes that wou ld be the majority of time. If it is an emergency 
and parents cannot be reached , the examination is of essence to collect the evidence 
needed if it wil l  be p rosecuted . The number of cases of minors who have been sexually 
assaulted is up considerab ly. 

Senator Dever asked if the p rovision in subsection 2 a l ready covered in  subsection 1 .  

Senator Dever indicated the need to be specific for sexual assau lt is the reason for 
subsection 2 .  It is u nclear under current law whether the examination can be done u nder 
the circumstances for a m inor. 

Senator Dever ind icated that on l ine 1 2 , the word "section" is changed to "subsection . "  So 
that would apply to subsection 1 and not subsection 2 .  

Representative Delmore believes this i s  because it cou ld be  life threatening. 

C hairman J udy Lee without the addition of subsection 2,  there was no need to state 
subsection. 

Senator Warner does this trigger a mandated reporting event? There is mandated 
reporting for chi ld abuse, but is there mandatory reporting for sexual assau lt or suspected 
sexual assault? 

Representative Delmore assumes it wou ld ,  but it doesn't mean that someone in the time 
requ i red to go in for the exam went. 

Senator Warner referred to Senator Dever comment, where the parent wou ld have to be 
suspect, this may come a long t ime after the event and exam. Timelines don't match . 

Representative Delmore often times if subject to sexual assault, it is not a one-time event 
that occurs. They may open up to someone and this wi l l  help it take p lace. 

(8:20) 
Janelle Moos, Executive Director for Cause North Dakota, representing the 20 domestic 
violence and rape crisis centers that p rovide services to victims across the state, spoke. 
The House spent considerable amou nt of time in d iscussion and amendments for this bi l l .  
Adolescents between 1 2  and 1 7  years of age are the largest g roup of sexua l  assault 
victims. They are twice as l ikely to be sexual ly assaulted as adu lts. Last year alone, 900 
victims of sexual assau lt received services from their crisis centers , and 40% of those 
victims were under the age of 1 8  at the time of the assau lt .  The house had specific 
concerns about mandatory reporting ,  whether th is wou ld interfere with that or if it would 
i nterfere with law enforcement's abi l ity to still investigate a crime. This bi l l  is specific to a 
minor's abi l ity to consent to a forensic examination if they so choose to do that. 70% of the 
victims who come to the crisis centers also report to law enforcement. We brought this bi l l  
forward because we heard victims under the age of 1 8  were coming i n  to receive care after 
sexual  assault and parents were either saying they d id not want to go forward with the 
forensic examination or they were saying you wil l  go forward with it. Our  hope is to carve 
o ut instances where victims have been sexual ly assau lted ,  ages 1 4  and 1 7  years old , 
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where the victim comes in  with or  without the parent, and they have the abi l ity to say they 
want the forensic examination .  Many times victims don't have a lot of options when they 
have been sexual ly assaulted . This gives them that choice,  to determine what they want to 
be involved in ,  regard ing p rosecution, report to law enforcement. I n  the House, there was 
d iscussion regard ing the defin ition of " reasonable", and there was never an agreement. 
The concern was cutting parents out of the entire situation , so we sought language where it 
wi l l  not supersede a victim's abi l ity to make that choice.  The victim knows the assailant 
85% of the time, and most often it is a parent or guardian or someone acquaintance. 

Senator Warner this is empowering the victim .  She i s  g iven the d iscretion to whether 
a l low forensic evidence to be collected . It is not mandated event. Does the physician have 
to report to law enforcement? 

Ms. Moos the orig inal  b i l l  d raft would have a l lowed victims to consent to or refuse to 
consent, and this became confusing in the House. This allows the victim to come in and if 
they choose to, they can move forward with the forensic exam. Physicians are sti l l  
mandated to  report sexual assaul t  cases, and they can sti l l  notify law enforcement that a 
crime has occurred . They wou ld encourage the victim to report to law enforcement also. 

Senator Warner language on l ines 1 2  and 1 3 , "this subsection does not authorize a minor 
to withhold consent to emergency examination ,  care or  treatment." There is no mention of 
forensic exam, so this doesn't get mentioned u nti l  later  in  the bi l l .  

Ms. Moos indicated the House had considered el iminating subsection 2 and just incl ude 
everything in subsectio n 1 . The p roblem was that you would also have to amend out l ines 
1 2  and 1 3 , where it states "the minor can't withhold consent" , so this wou ld not have done 
what we were trying to do with this b i l l .  

Senator Warner does emergency examination and treatment ,  does that equate exactly to 
l ife threatening? I s  there some lower threshold , not hemorrhaging to death for example? 
What is the parameter that defines l ife threatening? There must be some lower threshold 
from l ife-threatening that would mandate treatment. 

Ms. Moos in  looking at subsection 1 for l ife threatening,  and how that is defined versus 
what is d ifferent than subsection 2? 

Senator Warner does emergency equate to  l ife threatening or is  that too of  a threshold? 

Ms. Moos indicated it is real ly d ifficult to put defin ition on al l  sexual assau lt cases. It may 
not meet the threshold of l ife threatening. We d idn't get into the details between 
emergency and l ife-th reatening .  

Senator Warner equates emergency as matter of timeliness, where one month later may 
not equate to emergency. 

Ms. Moos stated that they encourage immediate report. There is a 96 hour window of 
report ing , but that doesn't a lways happen . We j ust don't want people to come in and be 
denied a forensic exam or  being forced to have one.  
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Senator Warner asked could the transmission of l ife threatening d isease by sexual assault 
be considered an emergency. For example, is there a test for Aids? 

Ms. Moos i nd icated that forensic nu rses. do test for STl 's and the prophylactic treatment as 
wel l .  

Chairman J udy Lee g rammer question - does emergency examination and care mod ify in  
a l ife threatening s ituation - or does only treatment modify i n  a l ife threatening s ituation . 

Ms. Moos stated they went through several d rafts, so needs clarification .  

Senator Dever you stated that 900 victims p resented themselves i n  one year, 70% 
reported to law enforcement. H ow many fol lowed up to p rosecution .  Have parents avoided 
p rosecution by denying their minor  chi ldren th is care. 

Ms. Moos i nd icated that p rosecution rates are relatively low. We have a h igh reporting rate 
to law enforcement. This cou ld  be d ifferent by j u risdiction .  We don't know how many don't 
report, or how many go  to law enforcement and don't come to them. There could be 
i nformation gathered i nto whether parents avoided p rosecution .  

Senator Dever understands to p rosecute would be timeli ness of forensic examination . 
Has law enforcement or attorney general taken an  interest i n  the b i l l? 

Ms. Moos ind icated the Assistant Attorney Genera l ,  John Byers,  d id work with them . They 
d iscussed some of the scenarios, and focused on th is  p iece. He clarified th ings with the 
House Committee in regards to reporting rates,  how often victims a re perpetrated on ,  they 
a re supportive of the language and good step forward . We don't want to interfere law 
enforcement to investigate crimes or with p rosecution .  Age 1 4-to-1 7,  because age of 
consent is 1 8 , th is would a l low them to consent to the forensic test. 

Chairman J udy Lee if the 1 4  to 1 7  year old consents and parents are i nformed, can 
parents say they can 't use that evidence.  

Ms. Moos if they col lected the evidence, i t  moves forward to law enforcement. We d idn't 
want the reasonable steps to notify someone is after the forensic examination occurs. Law 
enforcement holds the kit for 7 years or unti l vict im is  2 1  years old . They can wait for 
p rosecution .  

Chairman J udy Lee i nd icated that someone i n  that process has to b e  a mandatory 
reporter, correct? 

Ms. Moos stated law enforcement can move forward even without vict im participation .  

C hairman J udy Lee thought that i n  these k ind of cases,  if victim doesn't want to report, law 
enforcement can sti l l  move forward . 
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Ms. Moos ind icated that is correct. Even though  we have that abi l ity, our  prosecution relies 
on victim .  Prosecution doesn't want to j ust rely on vict im testimony, but a lso on the forensic 
tests . A victim may be fearful ,  m ay not remember, may think they brought it on. Too often 
we look at the victim versus the offender, and the forensic evidence p rovides more. 

C hairman Judy Lee ind icated that a lot of victims may not want to have their personal l ife 
d isplayed in  the newspaper or  court system, so they don't report or push toward 
p rosecution .  

OPPOSITION TO H B  1 3 1 4  
N o  opposed testimony 

N EUTRAL TO HB 1 31 4  
No neutral testimony 

Closed pub l ic hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bi l l /resolution : 

A bi l l  relating to consent for emergency medical care for a minor who has been sexual ly 
assau lted 

Min utes : "Click to enter attachment information . "  

The Senate H uman Services Committee met on March 1 7 , 20 1 5  for committee work on HB 
1 3 14 .  
Chairman J udy Lee recapped the b i l l  and testimony. 

Senator Warner asked for clarification from the committee regarding the mandatory 
reporting to law enforcement, and whether the minor victim sti l l  retain  their rights to pursue 
p rosecution .  

Chairman Judy Lee also wou ld l ike clarification . She bel ieves they have the d uty to 
report, but even if the minor can receive care without the parent consent. But even if a 
victim of domestic violence chooses not to pursue it, law enforcement can sti l l  pursue it. 
Chairman Judy Lee asked the inte rn ,  Femi ,  to val idate . 

Senator Warner also asked for clarification on l ine 1 5 , physician o r  health provider may 
provide emergency med ical care or forensic services, which would be the evidence 
col lection . They can do that without the parent's consent or guard ian .  The minor does not 
a uthorize to hold consent for emergency examination care or  treatment. Can they withhold 
consent for the col lection of evidence for forensic services . 

The committee reviewed testimony from the H B  1 3 1 4  Hearing by Janelle Moos. 

V. Chairman Oley Larsen in the realm of the mandated reporting , there is a l ist of those 
who must report. 

Chairman Judy Lee med ical providers would be on that l ist. 

Recess. 
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A b i l l  re lating to consent for emergency medical care for a minor who has been sexually 
assau lted 

M i n utes : tachment 

The Senate H uman Services Committee met on March 24 , 20 1 5  for HB 1 3 1 4  committee 
work. 

Senator Wa rner ind icated that he had a prior question regard ing the minor to withhold 
consent for a forensic examination . 

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. stated in  Section 1 ,  it does infer that the minor can 
withhold consent to subsection 2 .  They cannot withhold consent to the emergency care, 
but it doesn't say anyth ing about the forensic examination . 

Senator Warner understood it to be the other way around.  They couldn't withhold consent 
from the collection of evidence, but that practical ly, pol ice would not advance the case 
without the consent of the m inor. They wou ldn 't have much of a case un less the minor 
consented. 

Chairman Judy Lee referred to l ine 1 2  and 1 3 , where it does not authorize a minor to 
withhold consent to emergency care and treatment, would indicate that they have to be 
able to be treated . It does not say they can withhold the forensic test ing.  

Janelle Moos , CAWS North Dakota , clarified . The orig inal intent was that they could 
refuse and have access to one without parental consent. The orig inal  d raft of the bi l l  was 
written in  a way that it said upon request from the m inor victim ,  they cou ld receive . The 
House had concerns with the way it was written as they felt it d id not do both . The 
leg islative counci l  wrote it, if you are not requesting one, you don't want one, so you 
would n't need that. The House was concerned about that portion of it, because they felt it 
on ly al lowed vict ims to receive the exam and not to have one. The intent of the language 
was to al low the victim to receive the forensic examination and then at some point in time, 
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whatever reasonable is, that the physician would notify the parent that they had received 
both the emergency care as well as the forensic examination. I t  wou ldn't preclude a victim 
from getting an examination witho ut their parents being there.  

Senator Howard Anderson, Jr. ind icated that when read ing language, on l ine 1 2 ,  i t  says 
"th is subsection does not authorize a minor to withhold consent to emergency exam . . .  " It 
says nothing about a forensic examination there. So that means that the minor cannot 
withhold consent to emergency examination care or treatment. I n  the second subsection , it 
tal ks about the forensic services. So if we thought the minor cou ld withhold consent 
without that last sentence in subsection 1 ,  it looks l ike they could withhold consent in 
subsection 2, the forensic examination .  

Ms. Moos agrees i t  is  confusing . We discussed having forensic examination in  the first 
subsection ,  but it compl icated it too much. She confirmed what Senator Howard Anderson , 
J r. stated . 

Senator Howard Anderson, J r. restated if they don't want the forensic exam,  they don't 
have to. 

The committee d iscussed the language further, and confirmed they understood the 
language. 

Senator Howard Anderson, J r. stated the point of the bi l l  is that you don't have to get 
parental consent, so not whether the victim to choose to have the forensic exam done. 

Ms. Moos that is correct. Scenarios have happened in  which minor victims have come in 
where the parents have forced them to have a forensic examination and they haven't 
wanted to have one, or the parent has not al lowed them to have the examination . This 
a l lows the minor to make that decision .  The House felt that it was important that parents be 
notified even after the care was p rovided . We are not opposed to that. 

Senator Warner is okay with the language. To force a victim of sexual assau lt to submit to 
a forensic examination is a secondary sexual assau lt ,  so you cou ld further traumatize the 
victim . 

Senator Warner moved the Senate Human Services Committee DO PASS to engrossed 
H B  1 3 14 .  The motion was seconded by Senator Axness. 

Discussion 
V. C hairman Oley Larsen reiterated the intention of the bill is to leave the parents out. 

Chairman Judy Lee disagrees. The purpose of the b i l l  is to make sure the minor can get 
emergency medical care even if they can't reach the parents right away. 

Senator Dever interpreted it to be both . If it was suspected that the sexual assault was 
incest, that the parents not be notified. But if it was someone unrelated , they should make 
effort to notify the parents. If we are going to a llow the care to be made for the minor, in 
essence we are allowing the minor to consent to the care and should not put any stipulation 
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on that d ifferently than if it was an  adult making a decision. They shouldn't be forced to 
accept the care. 

Rol l  Cal l  Vote 
§ Yes, 1 No, Q Absent. Motion passes. 

Senator Dever will carry HB 1 3 1 4  to the floor. 
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:=ff ( 
C h a i r m a n  Weisz a n d  M e m bers of the H u ma n  Services Co m m ittee-

For t h e  record, I a m  Lo is De l m o re, a nd I re present Distr ict 43 wh ich is 

t h e  Southwest pa rt of the c ity of G ra nd Fo rks. 

I a m  h e re tod ay to ask yo u r  favo ra b le  co ns iderat ion of H ouse B i l l  1314. 

Th e b i l l  a l l ows v ict ims (age 14 and u p ) to co nse nt to o r  refuse a forensic  

exa m without p a re nta l consent.  Statist ics sh ow t h at these a re t h e  

l a rgest gro u p  o f  sexua l assa u lt vict ims a n d  a re twice as  l i ke ly  to be 

sex u a l ly vict i m ized as  a d u lts.  So metimes they report b ut often t h ey 

may re port to pee rs o r  oth e rs who may u rge them to re port a n d  be 

exa m i n e d .  They may n ot d isc lose to parents.  In some cases, fa m i ly 

m e m b e rs a re i nvolved . Somet imes, a lcohol  may be i nvo lved . 

So met i m es, t h e  vict i m  passed out a n d  had tro u b le  re m e m bering w h at 

h a p p e n ed . Somet i m es, they b l a m e  th emse lves fo r what h a ppened.  

U s u a l ly, Sa n e  n u rses who a re s pecifica l ly tra i ned (40-96 h o u rs)  o n  

evi d e n ce co l l ect ion  tec h n i q u es, u s e  of speci a l ized eq u i p m e nt, c h a i n  of 

evi d e n ce req u i re m e nts, expert test imo ny, i nj u ry detect ion,  etc. a re pa rt 

of a tea m w h o  co l l ect i nfo rmation, a n d  ask  q u est ions  i n c l u d i ng 

w h et h e r  the vict i m  wa nts to receive a fo rens ic  exa m to co l l ect evi d e n ce 

of t h e  assa u lt .  These n u rses ca n h ave a posit ive i m pact o n  p rosecut ions 

of  t h e  cases, and t h ey p rovide i nformation to the vict i m  o n  t h e  p rocess 

vict i m s  m u st go th rough . If  they a re u n d e r  18, vict ims ca n 't consent to 

or dec l i n e  t h is exa m .  So me vict i ms may wa nt the exa m a n d  some may 

n ot .  Pa re nts may h ave a n other  view. Th is b i l l  a l l ows t h e  v ict i m  to 

consent o r  dec l i n e  as they choose. 

Th e re a re oth e rs h e re to test ify on the b i l l , but I wi l l  h a p p i l y  a nswe r a ny 

q u esti o n s  that I ca n .  

) 



, .  

Tha n ks for you r  t ime.  I wou l d  u rge you r  favora b l e  s u pport of  House B i l l  

1314.  
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Chairman Weisz and Members of the Committee: 

My name is Janel le Moos and I am the Executive Director of the CAWS North Dakota. Our 

Coal ition is a membership based organization that consists of 20 domestic violence and rape 

crisis centers that provide services to victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, and sta lking 

i n  all  53 counties and the reservations in North Dakota. I'm speaking this morning on their 

behalf in support of HB 1314. 

Adolescents a re at substa ntial risk for rape and sexual assault. According to the National 

J uveni le  Justice Center, adolescents 12-17 years old are the largest group of sexual assault 

victims and they are twice as l ikely to be sexual ly victimized as adults (Snyder, 2000; Snyder & 

Sickmond, 2006}. Thirty-two percent of the sexual assault victims surveyed i n  the National 

Violence Against Women Survey (NVAWS) were first assaulted between the ages of 12-17. 

Last year alone in North Dakota over 900 victims of sexual  assault sought services from one of 

the twenty crisis centers; 40% of those victims were under the age of 18 at the time of the 

assault. Some adolescent sexual  assaults are of course reported to the police, either by the 

victims themselves or by someone they disclosed to, such as a parent. I n  North Dakota, 70% of 

sexua l  assault victims report the assault to law enforcement. 

SAN E  programs provide 24-hour-a-day, first response crisis intervention and medical forensic 

exams for adolescent and adult sexual assault victims. SAN E  nurses are often one of the first 

responders in cases involving teen victims of sexual assault and work as part of a team that 

i nvolves advocates and law enforcement. When a victim comes in to receive medical and 

forensic services SAN E nurses call on the others to provide information related to reporting 

options and to walk  victims through the process. One of the first questions is whether a victim 

wants to receive a forensic exam to col lect evidence of the assault. Currently, under ND law 

victims u nder the age of 18 cannot consent to or decl ine a forensic exam after a sexual  assault. 

HB 1314 changes that. There have been several instances where victims have chosen not to 

have the forensic exam and parents h ave required them to do so and other cases where victims 
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have selected to have the exam and the parents do not consent. Both scenarios are concerning 

to our coal ition. Rape and sexual  assault is about power. Victims often feel powerless and 

responsible for the assault and need to feel l ike they have the abi l ity to decide what happens to 

them and their body after the assault. Cu rrently, adolescent victims don't have that abi l ity to 

make that decision on their own. 

The changes outlined in  HB 1314 a l low victims (age 14 and up) to consent to or refuse a 

forensic exam without parental consent. This is an important step to a l low victims the abi l ity to 

choose what is right for them. Often times when victims have that choice they do move 

forward with the exam and receive additional services from advocates. This change in the law 

won't impact that. We wi l l  contin ue to encourage victims to get the exam and access services

but u ltimately it is their choice- therefore we urge a DO PASS on HB 1314. 

Than k  you. 



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1314 

Page 1, line 15, replace "shall" with "may" 

Page 1, line 16, remove "and any related followup care to the minor" 

Renumber Accordingly 



-h A minor  may contract for and receive emergency exa mination, care, or treatment in a 

l ife-threaten ing or sexua l  assa ult situationLwithout the consent of the m i nor's parent or 

guard i a n .  If a minor has an emergenc'( medical condition or the potential for an emergency 

medical condition Reasonable steps m ust be made to contact the minor's pa rent or  guardian . 

'H "B I s J '-f  
-<L/ / 1  I .2015 

I n  these situations, consent to emergency exam ination, ca re, Sf treatment, or forensic services 

of the minor  is imp l ied if reasonable steps to contact the minor's parent or guardian are 

unsuccessful. This section does not authorize a minor to withhold consent to emergency 

exa m i nation, ca re, Sf treatment, or fore nsic services . 

2. Upon the request of a minor who is a 'lictim of se><ual assault, a physician or other 

health care pro'lider shall pro'1ide emergency medical care or forensic ser1ices related 

to the se><ual assault and any related followup care to the minor without the consent of 

the minor's parent or guardian. 



Amendment 2 

1: A minor  may contract for and receive emergency exa mination, ca re, or treatment in a 

l ife-th reaten ing situation without the consent of the m i nor's parent or guard ian .  If a 

minor has a n  emergency medical  condition or the potentia l  for a n  emergency medical  

cond ition, consent to emergency exa mi nation, ca re, or treatment of the minor is 

i m pl ied if reasonable steps to contact the m i nor's parent or  guard ian  a re unsuccessfu l .  

This sectionsubsection does not a uthorize a m inor t o  withhold consent t o  emergency 

exa m ination, ca re, or treatment. 

2 .  Upon the request of a minor who is a victim of sexual assault, a8 physician or other 

health care provider �may provide emergency medica l ca re or  forensic services related 

-te-tRe to a minor  who is a vict im of sexual assa ult and any related followup care to the minor 

without the consent of the m inor's parent or guard ian .  Reasona ble steps must be made to 

contact the m i nor's pa rent or gua rd ian . 



Where a minor is the victim of a predatory criminal  sexual assau lt of a child, aggravated criminal  sexual 

assault, criminal  sexual  assault, aggravated criminal sexual a buse or  criminal  sexual  a b use, as provided in 

Sections 12-13 through 12-16 of the Criminal Code of 1961, as now or hereafter amended, the consent 

of the minor's parent or legal guardian need not be obta ined to a uthorize a hospital, physician or other 

medical personnel  to furnish medical care or cou nse l ing related to the d iagnosis or treatment of a ny 

disease or injury a rising from such offense. The minor may consent to such counseling, d iagnosis or  

treatment as if the minor had reached h is or  her  age of  majority. Such consent sha l l  not  be voidable, nor  

subject to  later d isaffirmance, because of  minority. 




